The Florida Board of Psychology

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
January 29, 2021
DRAFT MINUTES

GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL DIAL-IN NUMBER: 1-888-585-9008

When prompted, enter the following conference room number: **564-341-766**, followed by the # sign.



Dr. Randi Mackintosh, Chair

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL January 29, 2021

-DRAFT MINUTES-

DIAL-IN NUMBER: 1-888-585-9008

When prompted, enter the following conference room number: **564-341-766**, followed by the # sign.

Participants in this public meeting should be aware that these proceedings are being recorded and that an audio file of the meeting will be posted to the Board's website.

8:00 a.m. ET

- 1 Call to order General Business Meeting
- 2 Dr. Randi Mackintosh, Chair, called the general business meeting to order at
- 3 approximately 8:02 a.m. Those present for all or part of the meeting, included the
- 4 following:

5	MEMBERS PRESENT	STAFF PRESENT
6	Dr. Randi Mackintosh, Psy.D., Chair	Allen Hall, Executive Director
7	Ms. Mary (Denny) O'Brien, J.D.	Anna King, Program Operations Administrator
8	Dr. Madiley Broz, Psy.D.	Kyaira Brown, Regulatory Specialist II
9	Dr. Dawn Silver, Ph.D.	Macey Milligan, Regulatory Specialist II
10	Dr. Seema Weinstein, Ph.D.	

ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL

Christina Shideler, Esq.

11 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

12 Christopher Dierlam, Esq.

13 COURT REPORTER

- 14 For the Record Reporting, Inc.
- 15 1500 Mahan Drive
- 16 Suite 140
- 17 Tallahassee, FL 32317
- 18 850-222-5491
- 19 fortherecord@tallahasseecourtreporting.com

20 **DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS**

21 SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

- Robert Martin Duwors, Case Number 2019-45168 (p/c/p Dr. Catherine Drew, Dr. Amy
 Swan & Dr. Dean Aufderheide)
- 24 Dr. Duwors was present and represented by legal counsel, Ms. Liane LaBouef, Esquire, with the
- 25 Howell, Buchan & Strong law firm.

- 1 Dr. Duwors was before the Board for an alleged violation of Section 490.009(1)(b), Florida
- 2 Statutes (2016-2017), which subjects a licensee to discipline for having a license to practice a
- 3 comparable profession acted against by another state. Ms. Christina Shideler, Prosecuting
- 4 Attorney, presented the case and proposed Settlement Agreement to the Board. The proposed
- 5 Settlement Agreement included the requirements outlined below.
 - Reprimand

6

7

8

9 10

13

- Fine in the amount of \$1,000 payable within 90 days of the filing of the Final Order
- Costs in the amount of \$579.45 payable within 90 days of the filing of the Final Order
- Appearance at the Board meeting at which the settlement agreement is to be considered
- 11 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Dr. Mackintosh moved to accept the Settlement Agreement as
- presented with costs specified as \$579.45. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

RECOMMENDED ORDER

- 14 2. Isaac A. Levinsky, Ph.D., Case Number 2018-16762 (p/c/p Dr. Catherine Drew & Dr.
- 15 Amy Swan)
- Dr. Levinsky was present and not represented by counsel.
- 17 Dr. Levinsky was before the Board for an alleged violation of Section 456.072(1)(c), Florida
- 18 Statutes (2018), which indicates disciplinary actions may be taken when a licensee is convicted
- or found guilty of, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a
- crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's
- 21 profession.
- 22 On April 5, 2019, Dr. Levinsky, through legal counsel, filed a Petition for Formal Administrative
- Hearing with the Department, which was referred to the Florida Division of Administrative
- Hearings and heard under DOAH Case No. 20-0447PL.On October 23, 2020, a Recommended
- 25 Order was issued by the Administrative Law Judge recommending revocation of Dr. Levinsky's
- license to practice psychology. Dr. Levinsky filed exceptions to the Recommended Order on
- November 23, 2020. The Department's response to Dr. Levinsky's exceptions were filed on
- 28 December 9, 2020.
- 29 Dr. Levinsky made a request that Dr. Robert Stewart, Ph.D., LCSW, FACAPP, PA, be able to
- 30 address the Board as one of his former employers. Mr. Dierlam explained that, due to the
- requirements for review of the Recommended Order, the Board would not be able to allow Dr.
- 32 Stewart's participation.
- During the meeting, Ms. O'Brien disclosed she was the prosecutor in the Department of Health
- vs. Brown case cited in Dr. Levinsky's Proposed Recommended Order. Ms. O'Brien indicated
- the facts in that case were different and did not feel that she would be biased in this case.
- 36 Dr. Mackintosh disclosed she attended graduate school and was on various practicums with Dr.
- 37 Levinsky. Dr. Mackintosh indicated she did not feel that she would be biased due to the
- 38 previous association.

- Dr. Levinsky objected to Ms. O'Brien's participation. Mr. Dierlam stated that Ms. O'Brien was not
- 2 prevented from participating.
- 3 All members of the Board were asked to confirm they read the complete case record. Each
- 4 member confirmed.
- 5 Ms. Shideler requested the Board deny Dr. Levinsky's exceptions to the Recommended Order.
- 6 **MOTION**: Ms. O'Brien moved to reject the exceptions. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which
- 7 carried 5/0.
- 8 MOTION: Dr. Mackintosh moved to accept the Administrative Law Judge's findings of fact as
- 9 those of the Board. Ms. O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 10 MOTION: Ms. O'Brien moved to accept the Administrative Law Judge's conclusions of law as
- those of the Board. Dr. Weinstein seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- MOTION: Ms. O'Brien moved to accept the Administrative Law Judge's recommended
- penalties as those of the Board. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 14 Ms. Shideler presented a Motion to Assess Costs in this matter in the amount of \$36,664.86. Dr.
- 15 Levinsky's letter in response to the proposed assessment was also provided in the Board's
- 16 material for consideration.
- 17 Ms. O'Brien moved to waive the costs of the case. Prior to the vote on the motion, Ms. Shideler
- 18 presented reasons why Dr. Levinsky should remain liable for costs, one being that costs would
- be incurred by the Board if not assessed to Dr. Levinsky.
- 20 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Ms. O'Brien affirmed her original motion to waive the costs of
- 21 the case. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

22 PROSECUTOR'S REPORT

23

25

- 3. Christina Shideler, Esquire
- 24 Ms. Shideler presented the following Prosecution Services Unit report.

Legal Case Status	Report 7.14.20	Report 10.12.20	Report 12.17.20
Total cases open/active in Prosecution Services:	22	19	19
Cases in holding status:	0	0	0
Cases in Emergency Action Unit:	0	0	0
Cases under legal review:	3	4	3
Cases where a recommendation has been made for future Probable Cause Panel meetings:	3	2	3
Total cases where probable cause has been found:	11	11	10

Legal Case Status			Report 12.17.20
Cases pending before DOAH:	1	1	0
Cases agendaed for current or future Board meeting:	4	1	2
Cases pending before Appeals Court:	0	0	0
Cases a year or older from legal review:	15	12	12

- 1 **MOTION**: Ms. O'Brien moved to continue prosecuting cases older than 1 year. Dr. Mackintosh
- 2 seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 3 Ms. Shideler introduced Andrew Pietrylo, Esquire, who will serve as the new PSU Allied Health
- 4 Sciences Section lead.
- 5 At 9:01 a.m., the Chair called for a 10-minute break. The meeting resumed at 9:11 a.m.

6 **ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS**

7 REVIEW OF PSYCHOLOGIST LICENSURE APPLICATIONS

- 8 4. Beth Ann Grosshans Endorsement of 10 Years Licensed Psychologist Experience
- 10 Dr. Grosshans was present and represented by legal counsel, Mr. Bruce D. Lamb, Esquire, of
- 11 Gunster Law Firm.
- 12 Dr. Grosshans was before the Board for review of disciplinary action taken in August 2013 on
- her New Jersey psychologist license. Provided for the Board's review was the application,
- supporting documents, personal statement, attorney's statement and applicable disciplinary
- 15 documents.
- 16 Documentation clarifying the applicant's education was pending receipt, but was received during
- the meeting. Ms. King read the APA verification letter from Ohio State University into the record.
- 18 The letter was formally added to the addendum after the meeting.
- 19 Mr. Lamb addressed the Board on behalf of the applicant.
- 20 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Dr. Mackintosh moved to approve Dr. Grosshan's application
- 21 for licensure. Ms. O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 22 5. Gabriel Pagan-Llorens Endorsement of 10 Years Licensed Psychologist
- 23 Experience
- 24 Dr. Pagan-Llorens originally applied and was approved under the Exam application method in
- May 2020. Under that method, she completed the Florida laws and rules exam requirement and
- was pending completion of the EPPP for licensure.
- 27 On July 1, 2020, Section 490.006(1)(b), F.S., was amended to create the Endorsement of 10
- 28 Years of Licensed Psychologist Experience application method. Dr. Pagan-Llorens determined

- to change to this method in November 2020 and provided an official verification of her Puerto
- 2 Rico psychologist license to complete the application.
- 3 Dr. Pagan-Llorens' application is before the Board to consider whether she meets the intent of
- 4 the Board's requirements in Section 490.006(1)(b), F.S. According to Dr. Pagan-Lloren's official
- 5 transcript, she was licensed as a psychologist in 2011, but did not at that time hold a doctorate
- 6 degree in psychology. Dr. Pagan-Llorens' obtain her doctorate degree from an APA-accredited
- 7 program in 2016.
- 8 Provided for the Board's review was the application and all supporting documents.
- 9 Mr. Dierlam stated the law does not require the experience have been obtained after receipt of
- the doctoral degree. The applicant must simply possess the required years of verified licensed
- psychologist experience and have completed an APA-accredited doctoral degree in psychology
- at the time the application is submitted to the Board.
- MOTION: Following discussion, Dr. Silver moved to approve Dr. Pagan-Llorens' application for
- licensure. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

15 REVIEW OF POST- DOCTORAL SUPERVISED EXPERIENCE

- 16 6. Riwa Kassar Bifurcation Examination
- 17 Dr. Kassar was present and not represented by legal counsel.
- 18 Dr. Kassar met all requirements under the Bifurcation/Examination application method and was
- approved for licensure on April 27, 2020, pending documentation of 2000 hours of post-doctoral
- 20 supervised experience and completion of the EPPP and Laws & Rules Examinations.
- 21 During the October 2020 meeting, Dr. Kassar was before the Board for review of partial post-
- doctoral hours submitted under Dr. Debra Bendell-Estroff, California-Licensed Psychologist,
- 23 PSY10829. The experience took place between January 23, 2020 and October 9, 2020 and
- totaled 1,120 hours. The experience location noted on the post-doctoral verification form was
- 25 Fielding Graduate University in Santa Barbara, CA.
- 26 Dr. Bendell-Estroff replied "No" to Questions 1, 2 and 9 of the post-doctoral verification form,
- 27 explaining the supervised experience was in the area of clinical psychology research only and
- 28 no direct client contact had been completed. Upon staff inquiry, Dr. Kassar informed she was
- 29 currently completing the 900 hours of direct client contact required with the Mental Health
- 30 Center of Florida as a post-doctoral resident under the supervision of another licensed
- 31 psychologist.
- 32 The Board requested that Dr. Kassar provide additional information regarding the research
- completed and information on how it is being integrated with the direct client hours she is
- 34 currently completing.
- Provided for the Board's consideration was all information considered during the October 2020
- meeting as well as Dr. Kassar's additional documentation submitted pursuant to the Board's
- 37 request.

- 1 MOTION: Following discussion. Dr. Mackintosh moved to approve the 1.120 hours of clinical
- 2 psychology research experience completed under Dr. Bendell-Estroff towards satisfaction of the
- 3 2,000 hours required for licensure. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

4 LICENSURE RATIFICATION LISTS

- 5 7. Licensed Psychologists
- 6 **MOTION**: Dr. Mackintosh moved to ratify the list of licensed psychologists. Ms. O'Brien
- 7 seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 8 8. Licensed Provisional Psychologists
- 9 **MOTION**: Dr. Mackintosh moved to ratify the list of provisional licensed psychologists. Ms.
- 10 O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

11 CONTINUING EDUCATION PROVIDER RATIFICATION LIST

- 12 9. List of Applicants
- 13 No applicants were presented for ratification.

14 APPLICATION EXTENSION RATIFICATION LIST

- 15 10. List of Applicants
- 16 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Dr. Mackintosh moved to ratify the list of applicants granted
- extensions. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 18 FILE CLOSURE APPLICANTS FOR DENIAL PURSUANT TO §490.005(3)(b), F.S.
- 19 11. List of Applicants
- 20 **MOTION**: Dr. Mackintosh moved to ratify the list of applicants presented for file closure. Dr.
- 21 Weinstein seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

22 RULES REVIEW & DEVELOPMENT

- 23 12. Rule 64B19-11.001, F.A.C., Examination
- 24 Mr. Dierlam presented correspondence received from the Joint Administrative Procedures
- 25 Committee (JAPC) regarding this rule for the Board's consideration. No formal action was
- 26 required of the Board. Mr. Dierlam and Board staff will follow-up to provide the needed
- 27 information to JAPC.
- 28 13. Rule 64B19-11.010, F.A.C., Limited Licensure
- 29 Mr. Dierlam presented correspondence received from JAPC regarding this rule for the Board's
- 30 consideration.

- 1 MOTION: Following discussion, Dr. Mackintosh moved to repeal Rule 64B19-11.012(2), Florida
- 2 Administrative Code. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 3 **MOTION:** Dr. Mackintosh moved the proposed rule language would not have an adverse impact
- 4 on small business. Ms. O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 5 **MOTION:** Dr. Silver moved the proposed rule language would not have an economic impact on
- 6 government or any other entity in excess of \$200,000 within one year after the implementation
- of the rule. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 8 MOTION: Dr. Mackintosh moved the proposed rule language should not be designated as a
- 9 minor violation for first time offenses. Dr. Weinstein seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 10 14. Rule 64B19-11.011, F.A.C., Provisional License; Supervision of Provisional License
- 11 Mr. Dierlam presented correspondence received from JAPC regarding this rule for the Board's
- consideration. No formal action was required of the Board. Mr. Dierlam and Board staff will
- follow-up to provide the needed information to JAPC.
- 14 15. Rule 64B19-11.012, F.A.C., Application Forms
- 15 Mr. Dierlam presented correspondence received from JAPC regarding this rule for the Board's
- 16 consideration. No formal action was required of the Board. Mr. Dierlam and Board staff will
- 17 follow-up to provide the needed information to JAPC.
- 18 16. Rule 64B19-18.004, F.A.C., Use of Test Instruments
- During the October 2020 meeting, the Board considered a Petition for Declaratory statement
- 20 regarding conducting psycho-educational assessments through virtual testing for a gifted
- 21 program and other exceptionalities.
- 22 Following extensive discussion, the Board denied the petition as the subject of the petition will
- 23 likely impact similarly situated licensees and would therefore be more appropriate to be
- considered in rule development. Additionally, other correspondence was received from a
- 25 member of the public regarding other sections of this rule, which the Board may consider during
- 26 development.
- 27 Former board member, Dr. Catherine Drew, was delegated to work with the Board's attorney,
- 28 Christopher Dierlam, Esquire, on this matter. However, a new delegate is needed as Dr. Drew's
- 29 service to the Board recently ended.
- 30 Mr. Dierlam addressed this issue during the meeting. Following discussion, Dr. Silver
- 31 volunteered to work with Mr. Dierlam.
- 32 **MOTION**: Dr. Mackintosh moved to delegate Dr. Silver to work with Mr. Dierlam on proposed
- rule language. Ms. O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

1 REPORT OF ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, CHRISTOPHER DIERLAM, ESQUIRE

17. Rule Status Report

2

4

3 Mr. Dierlam presented the status of the following rules to the Board.

Rule Number	Rule Title	Date Rule Language Approved by Board	Date Sent to OFARR	Rule Development Published	Notice Published	Adopted	Effective
64B19- 11.001	Examination.	07/31/2020	09/18/2020(RD/RN)	09/28/2020	10/13/2020 JAPC LTR 10/19/2020 JAPC RESPONSE 11/06/2020 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (NOPH) 01/08/2021		
64B19- 11.010	Limited Licensure.	07/31/2020	09/18/2020(RD/RN)	09/28/2020	10/13/2020 JAPC LTR 10/19/2020 JAPC RESPONSE 11/06/2020 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (NOPH) 01/08/2021		
64B19- 11.011	Provisional License; Supervision of Provisional Licensees.	07/31/2020	09/18/2020(RD/RN)	09/28/2020	10/13/2020 JAPC LTR 10/19/2020 JAPC RESPONSE 11/06/2020 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (NOPH) 01/08/2021		
64B19- 11.012	Application Forms.	07/31/2020	09/18/2020(RD/RN)	09/28/2020	10/13/2020 JAPC LTR 10/19/2020 JAPC RESPONSE 11/06/2020 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (NOPH) 01/08/2021		

Rule Number	Rule Title	Date Rule Language Approved by Board	Date Sent to OFARR	Rule Development Published	Notice Published	Adopted	Effective
64B19- 11.0035	Licensure by Examination: Proof Satisfactory to the Board for the Purpose of Determining Eligibility for Examination.	07/31/2020	10/01/2020(RD/RN)	10/08/2020	10/28/2020	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
64B19- 17.002	Disciplinary Guidelines.	10/30/2020	12/17/2020(RD/RN)	12/29/2020	01/13/2021		
64B19- 18.002	Use of the Title Sex Therapist.	10/30/2020	12/11/2020(RD/RN)	12/18/2020	01/13/2021		
64B19- 18.003	Qualifications to Practice Hypnosis.	10/30/2020	12/11/2020(RD/RN)	12/18/2020	01/13/2021		
64B19- 18.004	Use of Test Instruments			12/31/2020			
64B19- 18.008	Board Approval of Specialty Certifying Bodies.	10/30/2020	12/11/2020(RD/RN)	12/18/2020	01/13/2021		

1 ADDITIONAL DISCUSSION UNDER RULE STATUS REPORT

2 Rule 64B19-17.002, F.A.C., Disciplinary Guidelines

- 3 Mr. Dierlam also discussed correspondence received from JAPC regarding the proposed
- 4 disciplinary guidelines approved by the Board in October. Based on the correspondence, Mr.
- 5 Dierlam recommended the Board strike Rule 64B19-17.002(3)(I), F.A.C.
- 6 MOTION: Following discussion, Dr. Mackintosh moved to approve the recommended
- 7 amendment to the proposed rule language. Dr. Silver seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 8 MOTION: Dr. Silver moved the proposed rule language would not have an adverse impact on
- 9 small business. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 10 **MOTION:** Dr. Silver moved the proposed rule language would not have an economic impact on
- government or any other entity in excess of \$200,000 within one year after the implementation
- of the rule. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 13 **MOTION:** Dr. Silver moved the proposed rule language should not be designated as a minor
- 14 violation for first time offenses. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 15 **MOTION:** Ms. O'Brien moved there should not be a sunsetting provision. Dr. Mackintosh
- seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 17 At this point in the meeting, a previous licensure applicant was permitted to address the Board
- 18 regarding a different topic.

- 1 Dr. Jill Ormachea, previous licensure applicant, inquired regarding the status of the Board's
- 2 efforts to make the Endorsement of 10 Years of Licensed Psychologist Experience application
- 3 method available to persons whose doctorate degree in psychology was not accredited by the
- 4 APA. Dr. Ormachea was informed the Board had approved proposed legislation in that regard
- 5 for consideration during the 2021 session.
- 6 Additional discussion under Mr. Dierlam's rule status report was resumed.
- 7 Rule 64B19-18.002, F.A.C., Use of the Title Sex Therapist
- 8 Mr. Dierlam mentioned a JAPC letter was received for this rule requesting the term
- 9 "psychological health services" be defined.
- 10 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Dr. Silver moved this term is widely understood within the
- profession and therefore does not require further definition. Dr. Broz seconded the motion,
- which carried 5/0.
- 13 Rule 64B19-18.008, F.A.C., Board Approval of Specialty Certifying Bodies.
- Mr. Dierlam mentioned a JAPC letter was received for this rule. The JAPC letter indicates the
- rule should establish the standards for approval of certifying bodies in rules, instead of
- approving the certifying bodies on an ad hoc basis through petition.
- 17 Mr. Dierlam requested a delegate to work with him to respond to this request. Dr. Silver
- volunteered to work with Mr. Dierlam on the response.
- 19 **NEW BUSINESS**
- 20 18. 2021 Delegation of Authority
- 21 The Delegation of Authority, reviewed and approved annually, facilitates administrative
- 22 efficiency and documents when individuals or entities have been delegated to act on behalf of a
- 23 Board/Council.
- 24 **MOTION**: Following discussion, Dr. Silver moved to approve the Delegation of Authority 2021.
- 25 Dr. Weinstein seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.
- 26 19. 2021 Conviction Record Guidelines
- 27 The Conviction Record Guidelines, reviewed and approved by the Boards/Councils annually,
- are used by staff to assist in determining which licensure applications require individual
- 29 consideration at the quarterly meetings.
- 30 **MOTION:** Following discussion, Dr. Silver moved to approve the Conviction Record Guidelines
- 31 2021. Dr. Mackintosh seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

- 1 20. 2021 Board Elections
- 2 On an annual basis, during the first meeting of each year, Board members volunteer and are
- 3 nominated to serve in various officer and liaison roles. Mr. Hall provided information to the
- 4 Board regarding the responsibilities of each position.
- MOTION: Following discussion, Dr. Silver moved to approve the filling of each position as outlined below. Dr. Weinstein seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

Chair:	Dr. Randi Mackintosh
Vice-Chair:	Ms. Mary (Denny) O'Brien
ASPPB Delegate:	Dr. Randi Mackintosh
Continuing Education (CE) Liaison:	Dr. Dawn Silver
CE Liaison Back-Up:	Dr. Seema Weinstein
Pro-Bono CE Liaison:	Dr. Dawn Silver
Credentials Committee Liaison:	Dr. Madiley Broz
Legislative Liaison:	Dr. Seema Weinstein
Unlicensed Activity Liaison:	Ms. Mary (Denny) O'Brien
Examination Liaisons:	Dr. Seema Weinstein &
	Dr. Randi Mackintosh
Budget Liaison	Ms. Mary (Denny) O'Brien
Probable Cause Panel (Current Board	Dr. Dawn Silver
Member):	

- 8 21. Proposed 2022 Meeting Dates
- 9 Following discussion, the Board agreed to the dates and proposed locations indicated below.
- 10 January 28, 2022
- 11 Orlando or Cocoa Beach/Melbourne Area
- 12 April 29, 2022
- Tampa or Sarasota
- 14 July 22, 2022
- 15 Jacksonville or Panama City
- 16 October 28, 2022
- 17 Ft. Lauderdale or Palm Beach
- 18 OLD BUSINESS
- 19 22. October 30, 2020, General Business Meeting Minutes
- 20 **MOTION**: Dr. Mackintosh moved to approve the October 30, 2020, General Business Meeting
- 21 Minutes. Ms. O'Brien seconded the motion, which carried 5/0.

1 REPORTS, IF ANY

- 2 23. Randi Mackintosh, Psy.D.
- o Other Board Members:
- 4 No reports were provided.
- 5 24. Executive Director
- 6 Report topics:
- 7 o Cash Balance Report
- 8 o Expenditures by Function Report
- 9 Item provided for the Board's information.

10 OTHER BUSINESS AND INFORMATION

- 11 25. ASPPB Disciplinary Data Report
- 12 Informational item
- 13 26. Psychology Staff Recognition
- 14 Informational item